



Project Firstline Session Plans

Topic Ten: Virus Strains

Contents

Overview of Sessions	1
Facilitator Instructions	1
Choose Your Session	1
Session Materials	1
Using the Materials	2
Conducting a Session	2
Educational Content Outline	3
Sessions at a Glance	4
60-Minute Session Plan	5
1. Session Start	5
2. Agenda, Learning Objectives, and Introductions	5
3. Video and Discussion	8
4. Discussion and Breakout Groups	12
5. Reflection and Wrap-Up	16
After the Session	18
20-Minute Session Plan	19
1. Session Start	19
2. Agenda, Learning Objectives, and Setting the Context	19
3. Video and Discussion	21
4. Reflection and Wrap-Up	25
After the Session	26
10-Minute Session Plan	27
1. Session Start	27
2. Agenda	27
After the Session	33
Appendix: Content Outlines	34

Overview of Sessions

The following Session Plans for **Topic Ten: Virus Strains** are to help guide you, as a provider of the Project Firstline training, with the necessary support to use Project Firstline materials to create well-rounded training events and educate your audience about infection control.

Facilitator Instructions

Choose Your Session

There are three different session lengths for you to choose from based on time available for training:

- 60 minutes (e.g., dedicated training session)
- 20 minutes (e.g., "Lunch and Learn" or agenda add-on)
- 10 minutes (e.g., "micro-learning" or agenda add-on)

Due to time constraints, the 10- and 20-minute sessions will have less opportunity for interactive discussion. We invite you to extend sessions for greater engagement whenever possible. We have also provided recommendations for using chat functions and other activities to draw your audience into the materials when you are limited to only a short amount of time.

These time lengths are not intended to be prescriptive and are instead provided simply as a tool that you may tailor to best match your specific audience and needs. When you schedule your session, use your knowledge of your audience's availability and learning needs to adapt these materials as needed.

Session Materials

- Three different Session Plans: 60 minutes, 20 minutes, and 10 minutes
- Corresponding PowerPoint slide decks: 60 minutes, 20 minutes, and 10 minutes
- Links to Project Firstline videos: Inside Infection Control by CDC's Project Firstline
- Copies, links, or PDFs of Frequently Asked Questions About Virus Strains

Using the Materials

The sample materials are presented in sequence. You may, however, mix and match content to meet participant needs. Things to know:

- Use the plans and slides as guides for your presentation.
- The slide numbers in the Session Plans correspond to the companion slide decks provided.
- We encourage you to customize the look and feel of the presentations and to adapt the facilitator script to better match your own voice and audience.
- The time recommendations are provided simply as a guide for the minimum amount of time needed for each section. We encourage you to take more time, as needed, with specific sections.

Conducting a Session

Schedule and announce the sessions according to your organization's needs and requirements.

Each session should include, at a minimum:

- Specific learning objectives
- Presentation of core content
- Opportunities to understand and engage with the key messages for each topic

Each session should also give participants the opportunity to learn more, to understand and connect internally with the content, and to act on their learning and engage with others.

Additional guidance for facilitators and information about other topics covered in the series are provided in the Project Firstline Facilitator Toolkit Guide.

Educational Content Outline

Topic Ten: Virus Strains

Content Summary: New strains, or variants, of viruses are common. The tools that we use for infection control are designed to work on all strains, and it's important to keep using those tools to prevent virus from spreading.

Inside Infection Control Videos:

Episode 19: What Do New COVID-19 Strains Mean for Infection Control?

Learning Objectives

- Describe one (1) way that new virus strains develop.
 - Viruses have genes that carry instructions for making new copies of themselves, and every new copy contains those instructions as well. Sometimes mistakes are made during the copying process. When the instructions are copied wrong, the new viruses come out slightly different. When the new virus is still able to function even with the mistake, a new strain is created, since all of the copies from that virus will carry that mistake.
 - Discuss why the infection control actions recommended for COVID-19 work for new strains of SARS-CoV-2, and why they are even more important.
 - Viruses have new strains, variations, or mutations all the time, and there are new strains of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19. The tools we use for infection control are designed to work on all strains. That's why it's important to keep doing the recommended infection control actions the right way at the right time.
 - Some of the new strains of SARS-CoV-2 allow the virus to spread more easily or make it resistant to treatments or vaccines, so it is even more important to continue using the recommended infection control actions.

Sessions at a Glance

Topic Ten:

Virus Strains

Session Plans and When to Use:

- 60 minutes (e.g., dedicated training session)
- 20 minutes (e.g., "Lunch and Learn" or agenda add-on)
- 10 minutes (e.g., "micro-learning" or agenda add-on)

Format:

• Online, synchronous

Special Supplies:

- Registration list
- Participant booklet
- Session feedback form
- Timekeeper
- PDF of Frequently Asked Questions About Virus Strains



1. Session Start



Slide 1: Opening Slide

Participants log in and get settled.

2. Agenda, Learning Objectives, and Introductions



10 minutes



Slide 2: Agenda



Facilitator Notes

- Welcome
- Housekeeping, either orally or via chat
 - If needed, additional notes specific to the platform you're using (e.g., how to "raise your hand," how to post questions)
- Overview of agenda
- If this session is part of an ongoing series, you may choose to say, "welcome back," "thank you for joining us again," etc.



Sample Script

"Welcome to Project Firstline. Thank you for joining us! Before we begin, a few housekeeping notes. We'll meet today for one hour. Please keep your videos on, to the extent possible, and keep your microphone muted when you are not contributing to the discussion. It's great to see you all here today!

"Today, we'll discuss how new virus strains, or variants, develop, and what that means for infection control. We'll have an opportunity to reflect before we wrap up for the day."



Slide 3: Learning Objectives



Facilitator Notes

Provide an overview of the session's learning objectives.



Sample Script

"After today, you will be able to describe how new virus strains develop. You'll be able to discuss why the infection control actions recommended for COVID-19 work for new strains of SARS-CoV-2, and why they are even more important."



Slide 4: Introductions



Facilitator Notes

- These questions will give you a better understanding of your participants' backgrounds, experience, and level of knowledge.
- Tailor your slide delivery for the virtual format and platform, and the number of participants:
 - > You may wish to add role- or facility-specific questions to the introductions.
 - If your virtual platform has poll functionality, you may use a poll for the third bullet on the slide, which asks whether anyone has ever been asked about virus variants. This approach is advised if you have more than 15 participants.
 - If you have a large group, you may decide to skip introductions and use the chat or poll feature for introductions.
- Be sure to introduce yourself and anyone who is assisting you.



Sample Script

"Please share in 30 seconds or less your name, your role, and whether anyone has ever asked you about virus variants, or mutations."

Slide 5: Poll



Facilitator Notes

If the webinar platform you are using has a polling feature, set up this poll, and after giving participants time to respond, display the poll results:

Which of the following are examples of viruses with variant strains? Check all that apply.

- □ Influenza (flu) viruses
- Rhinoviruses
- Coronaviruses
- Enteroviruses
- If the webinar platform doesn't have a polling feature, ask participants to respond to the question in the chat, or via the "raise your hand" or "thumbs-up" feature.



Sample Script

"We've all heard a lot recently about the emergence of new strains of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19. **But do other viruses have different strains?**"

(Pause to allow participants to respond. Show poll results, if your platform has that feature, and reveal the correct answer.)

"That's right, all these virus types have variant strains. And there are many more. Viruses have new strains, variations, or mutations all the time."



Slide 6: Clarifying Terms



Facilitator Notes

Clarify the terms used to describe how viruses change.



"You may be hearing many different terms used when it comes to strains, or variants. Let's take a minute to talk about these terms and what they mean.

"When a virus makes copies of itself and small mistakes occur, that is called a mutation. We often talk about mutating or mutations to describe the process through which a virus changes.

"The changed virus itself is the new variant. The word 'strain' is often used the same way as the word 'variant.' For the rest of this session, we'll use the word 'strain.'"

3. Video and Discussion



15 minutes (video 6:08)



Slide 7: Understanding and Protecting Yourself from Virus Strains



Facilitator Notes

- Thank participants for responding to the question.
- Introduce video episode of Inside Infection Control.
- Ask participants to write down at least three important takeaways from the episode.



Sample Script

"Thank you for sharing! We're now going to dive into learning about strains themselves, as well as how we can protect ourselves and each other from new virus strains.

"First, we'll check in with the CDC's Dr. Abby Carlson and then discuss together what we've learned. As you watch this video, please make note in your Participant Booklet of at least three important takeaways. Dr. Carlson is going to use a particular analogy to explain the concept of variants. We'll talk about it more after the video."





Facilitator Notes

Access the video here:

CDC Website: <u>https://www.cdc.gov/infectioncontrol/projectfirstline/videos/EP19-</u> Strains-LowRes.mp4

OR

Project Firstline YouTube Playlist: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=U1CmOFG5GJM



Slide 9: Discussion



- After the episode, ask the group to discuss:
 - What is interesting and important about this episode?
 - What is worth noting?
- You may choose to ask participants to share their reactions orally, via chat, or both.
- You may wish to use the following talking points to confirm or correct key information, and you may also wish to refer to the <u>Content Outline</u> for this video episode:
 - ▶ Viruses have new strains, variations, or mutations all the time.
 - Even though new strains are around, the basic pieces of the virus are still the same. This means that the recommended infection control actions still work and are still needed to help stop the spread of COVID-19.
 - Infection control actions recommended for COVID-19, like using recommended PPE, masking, physical distance, good ventilation, hand hygiene, and environmental cleaning and disinfection, are designed to work on all strains.
 - Some of the new strains of SARS-CoV-2 spread more easily, so it is even more important to continue using the recommended infection control actions.
- If the dog analogy is not mentioned, ask participants if the analogy made sense to them. Why or why not?

"After watching that video, what stands out to you as especially important and interesting? What do you see as the most important points to remember?"

(Pause to allow for responses. Encourage additional discussion.)

"There were several key points in the video. What about the dog analogy? Did that make sense to you?"



Slide 10: Viruses Regularly Create New Strains



Facilitator Notes

- Review main messages.
- You may wish to refer to the <u>Content Outline</u> of Episode 19 of Inside Infection Control for additional discussion points.



Sample Script

"We hit many of the key messages in the video through our discussion, but let's review them one more time. First, Dr. Carlson shared that viruses have new strains, variations, or mutations all the time. This isn't something unique or special for COVID-19. Strains in viruses are why we can get sick from them more than once. For example, you've probably had a cold or the flu more than once in your life.

"Viruses have genes that carry instructions for making new copies of themselves, and every new copy contains those instructions as well. Sometimes mistakes are made during the copying process. When the instructions are copied wrong, the new viruses come out slightly different, with the mistake included in the instruction genes. Some mistakes make the virus not work anymore, so it's a dead end. When the new virus is still able to function even with the mistake, that's how a new strain is created, since all of the copies from that virus will carry that mistake."



Facilitator Notes

- Ask participants, either orally or via chat, to recall different recommended infection control actions for COVID-19 and to explain how they work to protect us:
 - PPE: The recommended PPE hasn't changed an N95 will still prevent you from breathing in virus that's in respiratory droplets.
 - Source control: Masking keeps respiratory droplets out of the air so they can't be breathed in by others.
 - Physical distance: Physical distance helps people avoid breathing in each other's respiratory droplets.
 - Ventilation: Good air handling in healthcare settings can reduce the risk of respiratory infections, including COVID-19, spreading among patients and staff.
 - ► Hand hygiene: Cleaning your hands is important soap and water and alcoholbased hand sanitizer break apart the envelope that holds the virus together.
 - Environmental cleaning and disinfection: Similarly, for cleaning and disinfection of the environment, the cleaning products on EPA's list N are known to kill SARS-CoV-2, including the new strains.
- If one of the above actions is not mentioned, add it to the discussion.
- Depending upon your audience and context, the topic of vaccines may arise in discussion. You may choose to refer to CDC resources for information:
 - Key Things to Know About COVID-19 Vaccines: <u>https://www.cdc.gov/</u> coronavirus/2019-ncov/vaccines/keythingstoknow.html
 - Updated Healthcare Infection Prevention and Control Recommendations in Response to COVID-19 Vaccination: <u>https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/hcp/infection-control-after-vaccination.html</u>
- Emphasize that the recommended actions for preventing the spread of COVID-19 are designed to work on all strains, and that infection control is more important than ever as some of the new strains spread more easily among people.



Sample Script

"Another important point from the video is that, even though we are still learning about the new strains, our infection control actions are designed to work on all strains. That means one of the best things we can do to keep ourselves and our patients safe is to follow infection control recommendations. **Can anyone recall one of the infection control actions from the video and how it helps stop the spread of the virus?**" (Pause for responses.)

"We all must remember that, because we are seeing strains of the SARS-CoV-2 virus that spread more easily among people, we have even less margin for error. It's even more important to continue using the recommended infection control actions."

4. Discussion and Breakout Groups



25 minutes



Slide 12: Sharing Your Knowledge



Facilitator Notes

Transition to discussion about how participants can put their knowledge into practice and share their knowledge with others.



Sample Script

"Now that you have a good understanding of what virus strains are, how they are created, and how we can protect ourselves, let's talk about how we can use that information and share it with others."



Slide 13: Your Experience

Facilitator Notes

- Either orally or via chat, invite participants to share their experiences, if any, communicating about virus strains.
- When possible, make connections between the participants' experiences.
- Follow-up questions could include the following:

What was the disease and patient context?

What was the question and how did you answer it?

Did you use any analogies to help explain the concept? Do you think the analogy of the dog breeds would be helpful?



"Let's hear from some of you. Have you had to explain the new virus strains to anyone at work? Maybe a patient or their family, or a coworker? How did that go?"

(Pause for responses and ask follow-up questions as appropriate.)



Slide 14: Breakout Groups



- In small breakout groups, participants will consider a scenario related to new strains of the virus that causes COVID-19, and create a brief skit or role play of the scenario.
 - This activity is intended to continue encouraging participants to apply the training concepts to their daily work.
 - Depending on the makeup of your group, you may wish to adjust the scenarios.
- Breakout Groups 1 and 2 scenario: A patient asks: "I've heard that some of the new COVID-19 strains are more serious. Should I be concerned?"
- Breakout Groups 3 and 4 scenario: A coworker comments: "I may be vaccinated, but some of these new COVID-19 variants still seem scary. I'm worried we aren't taking the appropriate precautions at work."
- Use breakout rooms appropriate to your virtual platform to divide participants into groups.
 - If your webinar platform allows for it, you may invite participants to choose their own breakout room.
 - ▶ Ideally, the groups should have no more than 4 or 5 people each.
 - ▶ If your group is large, you may need to have more than four breakout groups.
 - If possible, try not to place participants in breakout rooms according to their job responsibilities or experience. A mix of people considering a scenario will make for richer discussion.
- As needed, provide instructions related to the breakout room format, such as how to ask you questions.
- Inform the groups that they have 10 minutes to discuss the scenario and role play within their group, taking turns in the roles so that everyone has a chance to participate.
 - Ask each to identify people who will be willing to "perform" their skit or role play for the broader group.

After the small groups have gathered, depending on your virtual platform, you may use the broadcast message feature or another means to send reminders of the scenarios, how much time is remaining, etc. You may also choose to "visit" each group to encourage conversation and to hear their thoughts.



Sample Script

"Now let's consider some scenarios in which we might need to explain these concepts to others. We're going to break into small groups. In your groups, you'll be given a specific scenario. Please design a realistic 1- to 2-minute skit or role play of this scenario. Be sure to take turns so everyone has a chance to role play! You will have 10 minutes, and then we will share our skits with the broader group.

"Scenario 1, for Breakout Groups 1 and 2: A patient asks: 'I've heard that some of the new COVID-19 strains are more serious. Should I be concerned?'

"Scenario 2, for Breakout Groups 3 and 4: A coworker comments: 'I may be vaccinated, but some of these new COVID-19 variants still seem scary. I'm worried we aren't taking the appropriate precautions at work.""



Slide 15: Presentation



- After 10 minutes, and giving groups a "warning" when they have a few minutes left, reconvene the groups.
- Invite the groups to share their skits in turn.
 - ▶ Be encouraging and appreciative of their work and willingness to volunteer.
- Lead a discussion of the question: What strategies can we learn from these scenarios?
- As needed, correct and clarify information using these talking points, and other relevant points from the <u>Content Outline</u> for the video episode:
 - ▶ Viruses have new strains, variations, or mutations all the time.
 - Even though new SARS-CoV-2 strains are around, the basic pieces of the virus are still the same, and this means that the recommended infection control actions still work.
 - Some of the new strains of SARS-CoV-2 spread more easily, so it is even more important to continue using the recommended infection control actions.
 - The tools we use for infection control are designed to work on all strains, and it's important to keep using those tools to prevent COVID-19 from spreading.

- The recommended PPE hasn't changed an N95 respirator will still prevent you from breathing in virus that's in respiratory droplets.
- Wearing a mask keeps respiratory droplets out of the air, so the germs in them can't spread to other people or the environment.
- Physical distance also helps people avoid breathing in each other's respiratory droplets.
- Good indoor ventilation is important for clearing air that might have respiratory droplets in it.
- Cleaning your hands often with soap and water or an alcohol-based hand sanitizer is important.
- Disinfecting products on EPA's list N are known to kill SARS-CoV-2, including the new strains.
- Although COVID-19 vaccines are not addressed in the video, it is likely that the issue will be raised in discussion. You may wish to consult CDC resources for additional information:
 - Key Things to Know About COVID-19 Vaccines: <u>https://www.cdc.gov/</u> coronavirus/2019-ncov/vaccines/keythingstoknow.html
 - Updated Healthcare Infection Prevention and Control Recommendations in Response to COVID-19 Vaccination: <u>https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/</u> <u>hcp/infection-control-after-vaccination.html</u>



"Welcome back! I'm excited to see what you all have come up with! Group 1, let's start with you!"

(Allow each group to present their skit.)

"That was great, you all did a great job of working through these scenarios. Let's talk now about what we can learn from the role playing, and what you learned from the other groups."



Slide 16: Frequently Asked Questions



Facilitator Notes

Share, either in the chat or with a link, the *Frequently Asked Questions About Virus Strains* document.



"There is a lot to think about when we're thinking about new strains of viruses. I'm putting a link to a *Frequently Asked Questions About Virus Strains* document into the chat. You can share it and print it for reference."

5. Reflection and Wrap-Up



10 minutes



Slide 17: Reflection: What Did You Learn Today?



Facilitator Notes

Transition to the session wrap-up.



Sample Script

"I hope that, after today, you know more about new virus strains, and you feel confident sharing your knowledge with others. Let's use our last few minutes together to reflect and wrap up."



Slide 18: Questions?



- Invite additional, remaining questions.
- If the answers are information that is already included in this session, please respond.
- If the questions address content that is not covered in this session, please do not attempt to answer the question. Instead, take note of the questions and consult with CDC resources to follow up with answers after the session.
- Please document questions and share back with CDC at <u>ProjectFirstline@cdc.gov</u> for responses.



"But first, does anyone have any remaining questions about virus strains?"



Slide 19: Reflection: Using Your Knowledge



Facilitator Notes

Encourage participants to describe actions that they can take to use what they have learned. They may come off mute and speak, type in the chat, or both.



Sample Script

"Let's apply what we discussed today to your real life. Our patients and their families may ask questions about new COVID-19 strains. **What do you think is important for patients and families to know about virus strains?** Write in the chat one action you could take to protect yourself and others."

(Pause for responses.)

Slide 20: Resources and Future Training Sessions



Facilitator Notes

- Share additional resources from Project Firstline and CDC.
- If this session is part of a series, you may choose to describe the themes of upcoming sessions.



Sample Script

"That's great, thank you. We covered a lot today, and there is still more to learn. You can keep exploring these topics on your own using the resources on this slide. You can also follow us on social media."

(If this session is one in a series) "Next time, we will cover [insert next training topic]."



Slide 21: Feedback Form



Facilitator Notes

Explain how to access the feedback form.



Sample Script

"And, finally, please let us know how you enjoyed today's session by completing the following feedback form. Thanks again for joining us today."

After the Session



Send list of participant questions compiled during this session to ProjectFirstline@cdc.gov.



1. Session Start



Slide 1: Opening Slide Participants log in and get settled.

2. Agenda, Learning Objectives, and Setting the Context



3 minutes



Slide 2: Agenda

ſ	=2
L	

Facilitator Notes

- Welcome
- Housekeeping, either orally or via chat
 - If needed, additional notes specific to the platform you're using (e.g., how to "raise your hand," how to post questions)
- Overview of agenda
- If this session is part of an ongoing series, you may choose to say "welcome back," "thank you for joining us again," etc.



Sample Script

"Welcome to Project Firstline. Thank you for joining us! Before we begin, a few housekeeping notes. We'll meet today for twenty minutes. Please keep your videos on, to the extent possible, and keep your microphone muted when you are not contributing to the discussion. It's great to see you all here today!

"Today, we'll discuss how new virus strains, or variants, develop, and what that means for infection control. We'll have an opportunity to reflect before we wrap up for the day."



Slide 3: Learning Objectives



Facilitator Notes

Provide an overview of the session's learning objectives.



Sample Script

"After today, you will be able to describe how new virus strains develop. You'll be able to discuss why the infection control actions recommended for COVID-19 work for new strains of SARS-CoV-2, and why they are even more important."



Slide 4: Clarifying Terms



Facilitator Notes

Clarify the terms used to describe how viruses change.



Sample Script

"You may be hearing many different terms used when it comes to strains, or variants. Let's take a minute to talk about these terms and what they mean.

"When a virus makes copies of itself and small mistakes occur, that is called a mutation. We often talk about mutating or mutations to describe the process through which a virus changes.

"The changed virus itself is the new variant. The word 'strain' is often used the same way as the word 'variant.' For the rest of this session, we'll use the word 'strain.'"

3. Video and Discussion



14 minutes (video 6:08)



Slide 5: Understanding and Protecting Yourself from Virus Strains



Facilitator Notes

- Thank participants for responding to the question.
- Introduce video episode of Inside Infection Control.
- Ask participants to write down at least three important takeaways from the episode.



Sample Script

"We're now going to dive into learning about strains themselves, as well as how we can protect ourselves and each other from new virus strains.

"First, we'll check in with the CDC's Dr. Abby Carlson and then discuss together what we've learned. As you watch this video, please make note in your Participant Booklet of at least three important takeaways. Dr. Carlson is going to use a particular analogy to explain the concept of strains. We'll talk about it more after the video."



Slide 6: Episode 19: What Do New COVID-19 Strains Mean for Infection Control?



Facilitator Notes

Access the video here:



CDC Website: <u>https://www.cdc.gov/infectioncontrol/projectfirstline/videos/EP19-</u> <u>Strains-LowRes.mp4</u>

OR

Project Firstline YouTube Playlist: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=U1CmOFG5GJM



Facilitator Notes

- After the episode, ask the group to discuss:
 - What is interesting and important about this episode?
 - What is worth noting?
- You may choose to ask participants to share their reactions orally, via chat, or both.
- You may wish to use the following talking points to confirm or correct key information, and you may also wish to refer to the <u>Content Outline</u> for this video episode:
 - ▶ Viruses have new strains, variations, or mutations all the time.
 - Even though new strains are around, the basic pieces of the virus are still the same. This means that the recommended infection control actions still work and are still needed to help stop the spread of COVID-19.
 - Infection control actions recommended for COVID-19, like using recommended PPE, masking, physical distance, good ventilation, hand hygiene, and environmental cleaning and disinfection, are designed to work on all strains.
 - Some of the new strains of SARS-CoV-2 spread more easily, so it is even more important to continue using the recommended infection control actions.
- If the dog analogy is not mentioned, ask participants if the analogy made sense to them. Why or why not?



Sample Script

"After watching that video, what stands out to you as especially important and interesting? What do you see as the most important points to remember?"

(Pause to allow for responses. Encourage additional discussion.)

"There were several key points in the video. What about the dog analogy? Did that make sense to you?"





Facilitator Notes

- Review main messages.
- You may wish to refer to the <u>Content Outline</u> of Episode 19 of *Inside Infection Control* for additional discussion points.



Sample Script

"We hit many of the key messages in the video through our discussion, but let's review them one more time. First, Dr. Carlson shared that viruses have new strains, variations, or mutations all the time. This isn't something unique or special for COVID-19. Strains in viruses are why we can get sick from them more than once. For example, you've probably had a cold or the flu more than once in your life.

"Viruses have genes that carry instructions for making new copies of themselves, and every new copy contains those instructions as well. Sometimes mistakes are made during the copying process. When the instructions are copied wrong, the new viruses come out slightly different, with the mistake included in the instruction genes. Some mistakes make the virus not work anymore, so it's a dead end. When the new virus is still able to function even with the mistake, that's how a new strain is created, since all of the copies from that virus will carry that mistake."



Slide 9: Infection Control Actions Work



- Ask participants, either orally or via chat, to recall different recommended infection control actions for COVID-19 and to explain how they work to protect us:
 - PPE: The recommended PPE hasn't changed an N95 will still prevent you from breathing in virus that's in respiratory droplets.
 - Source control: Masking keeps respiratory droplets out of the air so they can't be breathed in by others.
 - Physical distance: Physical distance helps people avoid breathing in each other's respiratory droplets.

- Ventilation: Good air handling in healthcare settings can reduce the risk of respiratory infections, including COVID-19, spreading among patients and staff.
- ► Hand hygiene: Cleaning your hands is important soap and water and alcoholbased hand sanitizer break apart the envelope that holds the virus together.
- Environmental cleaning and disinfection: Similarly, for cleaning and disinfection of the environment, the cleaning products on EPA's list N are known to kill SARS-CoV-2, including the new strains.
- If one of the above actions is not mentioned, add it to the discussion.
- Depending on your audience and context, the topic of vaccines may arise in the discussion. You may choose to refer to CDC resources for information:
 - Key Things to Know About COVID-19 Vaccines: <u>https://www.cdc.gov/</u> coronavirus/2019-ncov/vaccines/keythingstoknow.html
 - Updated Healthcare Infection Prevention and Control Recommendations in Response to COVID-19 Vaccination: <u>https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/</u> <u>hcp/infection-control-after-vaccination.html</u>
- Emphasize that the recommended actions for preventing the spread of COVID-19 are designed to work on all strains, and that infection control is more important than ever as some of the new strains spread more easily among people.

"Another important point from the video is that, even though we are still learning about the new strains, our infection control actions are designed to work on all strains. That means one of the best things we can do to keep ourselves and our patients safe is to follow infection control recommendations. **Can anyone recall one of the infection control actions from the video and how it helps stop the spread of the virus?**"

(Pause for responses.)

"We all must remember that, because we are seeing strains of the SARS-CoV-2 virus that spread more easily among people, we have even less margin for error. It's even more important to continue using the recommended infection control actions."



Slide 10: Frequently Asked Questions



Facilitator Notes

Share, either in the chat or with a link, the *Frequently Asked Questions About Virus Strains* document.



"There is a lot to think about when we're thinking about new strains of viruses. I'm putting a link to a *Frequently Asked Questions About Virus Strains* document into the chat. You can share it and print it for reference."

4. Reflection and Wrap-Up



3 minutes



Slide 11: Reflection



Facilitator Notes

Encourage participants to reflect on the content of the session and how they will put their knowledge into practice.



Sample Script

"Let's use our last few minutes together to reflect on what we've learned and think about how we can put what we've learned into practice."



Slide 12: Questions

- Invite additional, remaining questions.
- If the answers are information that is already included in this session, please respond.
- If the questions address content that is not covered in this session, please do not attempt to answer the question. Instead, take note of the questions and consult with CDC resources to follow up with answers after the session.
- Please document questions and share back with CDC at <u>ProjectFirstline@cdc.gov</u> for responses.



"Does anyone have any remaining questions about virus strains?"



Slide 13: Resources and Future Training Sessions



Facilitator Notes

- Share additional resources from Project Firstline and CDC.
- If this session is part of a series, you may choose to describe the themes of upcoming sessions.



Sample Script

"That's great, thank you. We covered a lot today, and there is still more to learn. You can keep exploring these topics on your own using the resources on this slide. You can also follow us on social media."

(If this session is one in a series) "Next time, we will cover [insert next training topic]."



Slide 14: Feedback Form



Facilitator Notes

Explain how to access the feedback form.



Sample Script

"And, finally, please let us know how you enjoyed today's session by completing the following feedback form. Thanks again for joining us today."

After the Session



Send list of participant questions compiled during this session to ProjectFirstline@cdc.gov.



1. Session Start



Slide 1: Opening Slide

Participants log in and get settled.

2. Agenda



Slide 2: Agenda



Facilitator Notes

- Welcome
- Housekeeping, either orally or via chat
 - If needed, additional notes specific to the platform you're using (e.g., how to "raise your hand," how to post questions)
- Overview of agenda
- If this session is part of an ongoing series, you may choose to say "welcome back," "thank you for joining us again," etc.



Sample Script

"Welcome to Project Firstline. Thank you for joining us! Before we begin, a few housekeeping notes. We'll meet today for 10 minutes. Please keep your videos on, to the extent possible, and keep your microphone muted when you are not contributing to the discussion. It's great to see you all here today!

"Today, we'll discuss how new virus strains, or variants, develop, and what that means for infection control. We'll have an opportunity to reflect before we wrap up for the day."



Slide 3: Learning Objectives

Facilitator Notes

Provide an overview of the session's learning objectives.



Sample Script

"After today, you will be able to describe how new virus strains develop. You'll be able to discuss why the infection control actions recommended for COVID-19 work for new strains of SARS-CoV-2, and why they are even more important."



Slide 4: Clarifying Terms



Facilitator Notes

Clarify the terms used to describe how viruses change.



Sample Script

"You may be hearing many different terms used when it comes to strains, or variants. Let's take a minute to talk about these terms and what they mean.

"When a virus makes copies of itself and small mistakes occur, that is called a mutation. We often talk about mutating or mutations to describe the process through which a virus changes.

"The changed virus itself is the new variant. The word 'strain' is often used the same way as the word 'variant.' For the rest of this session, we'll use the word 'strain.'"



Slide 5: Episode 19: What Do New COVID-19 Strains Mean for Infection Control?



Facilitator Notes

Access the video here:

CDC Website: <u>https://www.cdc.gov/infectioncontrol/projectfirstline/videos/EP19-</u> Strains-LowRes.mp4

OR

Project Firstline YouTube Playlist: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=U1CmOFG5GJM



Sample Script

"We're now going to dive into learning about strains themselves, as well as how we can protect ourselves and each other from new virus strains.

"First, we'll check in with the CDC's Dr. Abby Carlson and then discuss together what we've learned. As you watch this video, please make note in your Participant Booklet of at least three important takeaways. Dr. Carlson is going to use a particular analogy to explain the concept of strains. We'll talk about it more after the video."

Slide 6: Viruses Regularly Create New Strains



Facilitator Notes

- Review main messages.
- You may wish to refer to the <u>Content Outline</u> of Episode 19 of Inside Infection Control for additional discussion points.



Sample Script

"Let's review the key messages in the video. First, Dr. Carlson shared that viruses have new strains, variations, or mutations all the time. This isn't something unique or special for COVID-19. Strains in viruses are why we can get sick from them more than once. For example, you've probably had a cold or the flu more than once in your life.

"Viruses have genes that carry instructions for making new copies of themselves, and every new copy contains those instructions as well. Sometimes mistakes are made during the copying process. When the instructions are copied wrong, the new viruses come out slightly different, with the mistake included in the instruction genes. Some mistakes make the virus not work anymore, so it's a dead end. When the new virus is still able to function even with the mistake, that's how a new strain is created, since all of the copies from that virus will carry that mistake."



Slide 7: Infection Control Actions Work



- Ask participants, either orally or via chat, to recall different recommended infection control actions for COVID-19 and to explain how they work to protect us:
 - ▶ **PPE**: The recommended PPE hasn't changed an N95 will still prevent you from breathing in virus that's in respiratory droplets.
 - Source control: Masking keeps respiratory droplets out of the air so they can't be breathed in by others.
 - Physical distance: Physical distance helps people avoid breathing in each other's respiratory droplets.
 - Ventilation: Good air handling in healthcare settings can reduce the risk of respiratory infections, including COVID-19, spreading among patients and staff.
 - ► Hand hygiene: Cleaning your hands is important soap and water and alcoholbased hand sanitizer break apart the envelope that holds the virus together.
 - Environmental cleaning and disinfection: Similarly, for cleaning and disinfection of the environment, the cleaning products on EPA's list N are known to kill SARS-CoV-2, including the new strains.
- If one of the above actions is not mentioned, add it to the discussion.
- Depending on your audience and context, the topic of vaccines may arise in the discussion. You may choose to refer to CDC resources for information:
 - Key Things to Know About COVID-19 Vaccines: <u>https://www.cdc.gov/</u> coronavirus/2019-ncov/vaccines/keythingstoknow.html
 - Updated Healthcare Infection Prevention and Control Recommendations in Response to COVID-19 Vaccination: <u>https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/ hcp/infection-control-after-vaccination.html</u>
- Emphasize that the recommended actions for preventing the spread of COVID-19 are designed to work on all strains, and that infection control is more important than ever as some of the new strains spread more easily among people.



"Another important point from the video is that, even though we are still learning about the new strains, our infection control actions are designed to work on all strains. That means one of the best things we can do to keep ourselves and our patients safe is to follow infection control recommendations. **Can anyone recall one of the infection control actions from the video and how it helps stop the spread of the virus?**"

(Pause for responses.)

"We all must remember that, because we are seeing strains of the SARS-CoV-2 virus that spread more easily among people, we have even less margin for error. It's even more important to continue using the recommended infection control actions."



Slide 8: Reflection



Facilitator Notes

Encourage participants to reflect on the content of the session, and how they will put their knowledge into practice.



Sample Script

"Let's use our last few minutes together to reflect on what we've learned and think about how we can put what we've learned into practice."



Slide 9: Frequently Asked Questions



- Share, either in the chat or with a link, the Frequently Asked Questions About Virus Strains document.
- Invite participants to ask questions. You may need to follow up with participants with responses after the training has concluded.
- If the questions address content that is not covered in this session, please do not attempt to answer the question. Instead, take note of the questions and consult with CDC resources to follow up with answers after the session.

Please document questions and share back with CDC at <u>ProjectFirstline@cdc.gov</u> for responses.

Sample Script

"There is a lot to think about when we're thinking about new strains of viruses. I'm putting a link to a *Frequently Asked Questions About Virus Strains* document into the chat. You can share it and print it for reference.

"Please also add other questions you may have in the chat. If we don't have time to address them today, I will follow up with answers to them after the training."

(Address questions as time allows.)



Slide 10: Resources and Future Training Sessions



Facilitator Notes

- Share additional resources from Project Firstline and CDC.
- If this session is part of a series, you may choose to describe the themes of upcoming sessions.



Sample Script

"That's great, thank you. We covered a lot today, and there is still more to learn. You can keep exploring these topics on your own using the resources on this slide. You can also follow us on social media."

(If this session is part of a series) "Next time, we will cover [insert next training topic]."



Slide 11: Feedback Form



Facilitator Notes

Explain how to access the feedback form.



"And, finally, please let us know how you enjoyed today's session by completing the following feedback form. Thanks again for joining us today."

After the Session



Send list of participant questions compiled during this session to <u>ProjectFirstline@cdc.gov</u>.

Appendix: Content Outlines

Episode 19 Title: What Do New COVID-19 Strains Mean for Infection Control?

Content summary: New strains of virus are common. The tools that we use for infection control are designed to work regardless of the strain, and it's important to keep using those tools to prevent virus from spreading.

Topic: SARS-CoV-2 Strains

Learning Objectives

After viewing this video, participants will be able to:

- Describe one (1) way that new virus strains develop.
 - Viruses have genes that carry instructions for making new copies of themselves. Every new copy contains those instructions as well. Sometimes mistakes are made during the copying process. When the instructions are copied wrong, the new viruses come out slightly different. When the new virus is still able to function even with the mistake, a new strain is created, since all of the copies from that virus will carry that mistake.
- Discuss why the infection control actions recommended for COVID-19 work for new strains of SARS-CoV-2, and why they are even more important.
 - Viruses have new strains, variations, or mutations all the time, and there are new strains of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19. The tools we use for infection control are designed to work on all strains. That's why it's important to keep doing the recommended infection control actions the right way at the right time.
 - Some of the new strains of SARS-CoV-2 spread more easily, so it is even more important to continue using the recommended infection control actions.

Key Educational Takeaways

- Viruses create new strains regularly.
- There are new strains (also called variants, or mutations) of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19, that appear to spread more easily from person to person.
- Even though we are still learning about the new virus strains, the basic structure of the virus does not appear to have changed, and that basic structure is what is important for infection control.
- Infection control actions recommended for COVID-19 like using recommended PPE, masking, physical distance, good ventilation, hand hygiene, and environmental cleaning and disinfection still work.
- Because we are seeing these new strains, we have even less margin for error: it's all the more important that our infection control practices are solid.

Content Outline

- There are new strains of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19.
 - Some might refer to them as new variants, or mutations.
 - Some of the new strains spread among people more easily.
- There are many questions about the new strains, including what they mean for infection control and whether we should we be doing things differently for them. However, the tools that we use for infection control are designed to work for all strains, and the way they work for COVID-19 hasn't changed.
- Viruses have new strains, variations, or mutations all the time.
 - We know it happens and will continue to happen.
 - ▶ It's why we hear about different strains of the flu, and why you can get a cold more than once.
- It's similar to how there are different breeds of dogs.
 - They look different from each other, but they are all still dogs: they don't turn into something else, and we still treat them like dogs.
 - ▶ The new virus strains are all still SARS-CoV-2 viruses, but they have developed small differences.
- How new strains develop:
 - ▶ Viruses have genes that carry instructions for making new copies of themselves.
 - Every new copy contains those instructions as well.
 - Sometimes mistakes are made during the copying process.
 - When the instructions are copied wrong, the new viruses come out slightly different, with the mistake included in the instruction genes.
 - Some mistakes make the virus not work anymore, so they can't survive, and they disappear.
 - When the new virus is still able to function even with the mistake, that's how a new strain is created, since all of the copies from that virus will carry that mistake.
- Researchers are working to understand how the new COVID-19 strains are different, but the basic pieces of the virus are still the same. This means that the recommended infection control actions still work and are still needed to help stop the spread of COVID-19.
 - The recommended PPE hasn't changed an N95 respirator will still prevent you from breathing in virus that's in respiratory droplets.
 - Wearing a mask keeps respiratory droplets out of the air so others can't breathe them in.
 - Physical distance helps people avoid breathing in each other's respiratory droplets.
 - Good indoor ventilation is important for clearing air that might have respiratory droplets in it.
 - Cleaning your hands often with soap and water or an alcohol-based hand sanitizer is important.
 - ▶ Disinfecting products on EPA's list N are known to kill SARS-CoV-2, including the new strains.
- Some of the new strains of SARS-CoV-2 spread more easily among people, so it's even more important to continue using the recommended infection control actions: keep doing what you're doing!





For more information please contact

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 1600 Clifton Road NE, Atlanta, GA 33029-4027 Telephone: 1-800-CDC-INFO (232-4636)/TTY: 1-888-232-6348 E-mail: <u>cdcinfo@cdc.gov</u> Web: <u>www.cdc.gov/projectfirstline</u>